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IN The 4th Court of Special Judge, Dhaka.

Present: Shaikh Nazmul Alam
Special Judge (District & Sessions Judge)
Court of 4th Special Judge, Dhaka.

Date of Judgment: Sunday, 11 October, 2020.

Special Case No. 23 of 2009
Metro Special Case No. 136 of 2009

Reference: Dakkhinkhan PS:Case No.13 dated 15.06.2007.

ACC. GR Case No. 54 of 2007.
The State

-Versus-

1. Md. Kamruzzaman Sarker, Son of Late Abdul Mannan
Sarker, Sub-Assistant Engineer, Titas Gas Transmission
And Distribution Company, Demra Olffice, Dhaka.
Permanent Address:Village-Tulatuli PS: Daudkandi,
District-Kumilla.

2. Md.A.Rahim, Son of Late  Abdul Wahed,
Technician, Titas Gas Transmission and Distribution
Company, Demra Office, Dhaka. Permanent Address:
Village: Biddabagish, PS: Kalkini, District: Madaripur

————————— Accused-persons.

The Charges: Under section 161 of the Penal Code and under

section 5(2) of the Prevention of Corruption Act, 1947.

Mr. Md. Rafiqul Islam Jweal: Special Public Prosecutor for

the Anti-corruption Commission.

Advocate for the accused person Md. Kamruzzaman Sarker:

S\ M. Abul Kalam Azad.

Advocate Adovocate for the accused person Md. A. Rahim:

Md. Shahabuddin Sheikh.

JUDGMENT
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The case of the prosecution in brief runs as follows:

The informant PW-5 Asaduzzaman Awlad lodges a FIR
with Dakkhinkhan Police Station, DMP, Dhaka on 15.06.2007
alleging that he is the Managing Director of Nippon Sweaters
Limited while the accused persons namely Md. A. Rahim and
Md. Kamruzzaman Sarker are the Technician and Sub-
Assistant Engineer respectively, of Titas Gas A NIPPON
Transmission and Distribution Company. Nippan Sweaters
Limited is situated at Chairman Market under Dakkhinkhan
Police Station, DMP Dhaka. In order to restore Gas
connection in his sweater factory, the accused persons
demanded bribe for taka 15,000 from him. The informant
denied to pay the bribe. The informant had been suffering huge
loss for disconnection of gas line and taking the advantage of
the situation, the accused person Md. Kamruzzaman took bribe
for taka 2000 on 10.06.2007 while accused Md. A. Rahim took
bribe for taka 7000 on 13.06.2007 through his Assistant
Accountant Mohammad Ali from the factory and assured to
give connection of gas in the factory. They demanded that they
would receive rest taka 6000 (six thousand) after the gas
connection. The informant finding no other alternative assured
the accused persons to pay the rest bribe money. The informant
further communicated to the Titas Gas office when the accused
persons informed him that they would give gas connection on
14.06.2007, Thereafter, he informed the matter to the authority
of RAB-1, Uttara, Dhaka. The accused person on 14.06.2007
at about 15.00 hour came to the factory and they restored the
gas connection. At that time, the members of the RAB under the
leadership of Flight Lieutenant Mollah Mohammad Tohidul
Hassan laid a trap beside the factory in civil dress. After
completion of works, accused person A. Rahim demanded
bribe money for taka 6000/-(six thousand) when the informant

told him that the bribe money was kept to his General Manager
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Mokbul. The informant’s General Manager Mokbul handed
over Tk. 5000/- (five thousand) to accused person A. Rahim.
Amount for taka 5000/- was kept in a white envelope of Nippon
Sweaters having 10 (ten) notes of taka five hundred each.
While the accused A. Rahim was counting the said money, he
along with the other co-accused Md. Kamruzzaman Sarker was
caught red handed in front of the shop named and styled as
M/S Mohiuddin and Sons, Master Plaza, Dakkhinkhan Bazar,
Dhaka. RAB also recovered 07 files and other documents of
Titas Gas Transmission and Distribution Company from the
custody of the accused persons. The accused persons on the
spot admitted the fact of taking bribe for taka 9000 and taka
5000. Thereafter, the informant came to the police station
along with RAB Members and lodged the instant FIR against
the accused persons.

Accordingly, Dakkhinkhan PS Case No. 13 dated
15.06.2007 under sections 161 of the Penal Code and under
section 5(2) of the Prevention of Corruption Act, 1947 was
recorded.

The case was Investigated by Mr. Zahid Hossain,
Assistant Director, ACC, Head Office, Dhaka who submitted
Charge sheet No.76 dated 08.05.2009 under sections 161 of
the Penal Code and under section 5(2) of the Prevention of
Corruption Act, 1947 against the accused persons
Md.Kamruzzaman Sarker and Md.A.Rahim.

After filing of the charge sheet, this case was transmitted
to the Court of Learned Metropolitan Senior Special Judge,
Dhaka. Learned Metropolitan Senior Special Judge took
cognizance of the offences against the two accused persons
under sections 161 of the Penal Code and under section 5(2) of
the Prevention of Corruption Act, 1947.

Thereafter this case was further transferred to this Court

and learned predecessor Special Judge framed charges under
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section 161 of the Penal Code and under section 5(2) of the
Prevention of Corruption Act, 1947 against the accused
persons.

In all (seven) PWs were examined by the prosecution.
Contesting defense cross-examined the PWS.

Since after close of the evidence by the prosecution,
accused persons were examined under section 342 of the Code
of Criminal Procedure, 1898 when they further pleaded not
guilty and inclined to adduce evidence. Both of them also filed
separate  written  statements. Accused  persons Md.
Kamruzzaman and Md. A. Rahim have also examined
themselves in Court to prove their Innocence.

Defense case, as it appears from the cross- examination
of the PWs, from the examination of the accused persons under
section 342 of the Code of Criminal Procedure and from their
oral testimonies in Court are that they are innocent and that
they have not taken any bribe from the informant or from any
of his employees and that they are no way involved with the
alleged bribery. It is the further case of the defense that as a
part of their official duties, the accused persons went to the
sweater factory on 14.06.2007 to give re-connection of gas and
that they had duly visited the factory and provided gas
connection thereon. It is the further case of the defense that the
informant tampered into the meter of the gas line in his factory
for several times and the Titas Gas took several grave actions
against them and that they became aggrieved to the accused
persons and arranged a fraudulent trap against them by
furnishing erroneous information to RAB and that they have
been falsely implicated in this case with a untrue story.

Points for determination:

1. Has the prosection been able to prove the Factum of
demand of bribe by the accused persons to the informant or

any of his employees, its acceptance and recovery of money
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from the accused persons?

2. Are accused persons guilty for the offence under sections
161 of the Penal Code and under section 5(2) of the Prevention
of Corruption Act, 1947?

Findings and Decision:

For the convenience of discussion, all the points are
taken together.

Learned Advocate for the Anti-Corruption Commission,
analyzing the evidence of prosecution argues that the
prosecution has successfully proved the charges against the
accused persons and they are, therefore, liable to be convicted
and punished.

On the other hand, Ld. Advocates for the accused person
A. Rahim taking me through the evidence led by the PWS
submits that the prosecution failed to examine any neutral
witness to prove the fact of demand of bribe and payment of the
same to the accused person as alleged. Learned Advocate also
submits that the witnesses, examined before this court, are
partisan witnesses and that no conviction can be recorded on
the basis of oral testimonies of the partisan witnesses. Learned
Advocate also submits that there is no corroboration of the
testimonies of the witnesses and that the accused person did
not demand bribe and that no fact of demand of bribe, delivery
of the bribe money to this accused and recovery of the same
from his custody, have been proved beyond reasonable doubts
and as such no conviction can be recorded. Learned Advocate
for the accused person taking me through the evidence by the
accused as DW-2, submits that the accused is the victim of the
grudge of the informant because of penalty imposed upon the
informant by the Titas Gas Company for the offence of meter
tampering and that the accused persons, on the date of alleged
occurrence, went to the spot to give reconnection in the factory

of the informant and that they had so done as per the
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instructions of their higher authority and that the accused
persons were apprehended therein with fraudulent allegations
of taking bribe. Learned Advocate goes on to argue that no
bribe was taken by the accused person but he was fraudulently
arrested with allegations of taking money. Learned Advocate
also submits that the accused persons have been allegedly
arrested in a trap case but alleged trap, though fraudulent, was
not laid in accordance with law and as such the proceeding is
vitiated and the accused person is entitled to get acquittal.
Learned Advocate for the accused person Md.
Kamruzzaman submits that the accused person is a Sub-
Assistant Engineer of Titas Gas Company and that on the date
of occurrence he along with co- accused Technician A. Rahim
went to M/S Nippon Sweaters Ltd Company to provide re-
connection of gas in the factory and that the visit was so made
as per written order of their higher authority and that the
accused person never demanded bribe to the informant for
reconnections. Learned Advocate for the accused person
taking me through the deposition of his client DW-1 submits
that neither the accused person demanded bribe nor the bribe
money was recovered from his possession on the spot and that
the accused person produced official documents to the RAB to
prove the fact of his official visit to the factory but RAB did not
pay heed to it. Learned Advocate also submits that RAB seized
official documents from the custody of the accused person
which happily prove the fact that it was an official visit to the
factory by the accused persons to provide reconnection of gas.
Learned advocate also submits that the evidence led by the
witnesses produced on behalf of the prosecution have failed to
prove that the tainted money was recovered from the
possession of the accused person. Learned Advocate giving

emphasis to the cross-examination of the Investigating Olfficer

PW-7 Md. Zahid Hassan, Deputy Director of ACC, submits
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that the Investigating Officer in his investigation report has
ultimately disowned the case of the FIR regarding recovery of
the tainted money from the custody of the accused persons and
as such giving sanction by the ACC to file charge sheet is
unwarranted and abuse of power. Learned Advocate for the
accused person also submits that the Investigating Officer in
his deposition before this Court has admitted the case of
defense regarding recovery of the tainted money and as such
this case loses legs to stand. Learned Advocate for the accused
person taking me through the evidence led by the witnesses on
behalf of the prosecution submits that impartial no Imparial
witness has been examined to prove the charge against the
accused person and that the evidence led by the infromant as
PW-5 is full of contradiction with his FIR regarding alleged
payment of bribe on 10.06.2007 Learned Advocate also
submits that according to the FIR allegedly the first bribe was
given to this accused through Mohammad Ali, an Assistant
account of the informant’s factory. But said Mohammad-Ali,
an Assistant account of the 5 informant’s factory. But said
Mohammad Ali has not been examined to prove the facts of
giving first bribe and as such presumption provided under
section 114(g) of the Evidence Act may be drawn for non- °
examination an exdamination of vital witness Mohammad Ali,
Learned Advocate for the accused person submits that PW-5,
in his examination-in-Chief before this Court, has claimed that
on 10.06.2007 at 4.00 pm, he went to the office of
Kamruzzaman at Demra and paid him bribe for taka 2000.
Learned Advocate candidly submits that the very claim in
untrue and opposed to the version of his FIR. Learned
Advocate also submits that as the informant has given untrue
evidence on this vital particular point, his total evidence loses
credibility and his evidence need not be considered to record

conviction against any of the accused persons. Learned
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Advocate also sumits that the RAB personnel are convinced by
the informant who made untrue and unauthorized story of trap
and that they are partisan witnesses incredible for their own
success of their trap and as such their evidence a
creditworthy” are not ereditwothy to record conviction.
Learned Advocate further states that alleged trap was not laid
in accordance with law and as such the entire porceeding has
been vitiated and no conviction can be recorded on the basis of
the trap not authorized by law. Learned Advocate for the
accused person taking me through the case of Ansar Ali Vs
State reported in 13 DLR Page 162-167 and the case of Abdul
Hye Vs State reported in 20 DLR page 407-411 submits that
recovery of money from the accused person is not enough to
award conviction and that discovery of currency note from the
person of the accused does not necessarily prove that it was
given as bribe.

Submissions made on behalf of defence may be divided
into two parts. On part relates to exclusively law points and
other part relates to mised question of facts and law.

We shall at first discuss the legal points raised By the
defense.

Let us pass to consider whether alleged trap suffers from
any illegality and infirmity to vitiate the proceedings of this
case.

On perusal of record, it appears that this Court vide
order dated 17.09.2009 framed charges under section 161 of
the Penal Code and under section 5(2) of the Prevention of
Corruption Act, 1947 against both the accused persons and
being aggrieved, accused person Md. Kamruzzaman Sarker
filed Criminal Misc. Case No. 33957 of 2011 before Honorable
High Court Division with an application under section 5614 of
the Code of Criminal procedure for quashing the proceedings
before this Court. At the time of issuance of the Rule, all
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further proceedings of this case were stayed. Honorable High
Court Division on Parties hearing both the paries made the
Rule absolute vide judgment on 21.11.2012 with observations
to the effect, “Under the aforesaid facts and circumstances we
are of the view that in laying and conducting the trap in the
instant case, as alleged, the mandatory provisions of Rule 16 of
the Anti Corruption Rules 2007 were not at all followed which
vitiates the very initiation of the proceedings in question. We
find merit in this Rule.

In the result the Rule is made absolute”

Being aggrieved by the judgment dated 21.11.2012
passed by Honorable High Court Division, Anticorruption
Commission, represented by its Chairman Preferred Criminal
Petition for Leave to Appeal No. 524 of 2014 and Honorable
Appellate Division vide judgment dated 11.04.2016 was
pleased to set aside the judgment and order dated 21.11.2012
passed by Honorable High Court Division in Criminal
Miscellaneous Case No. 33957 of 2011. Honorable Appellate
Division Was also pleased to direct this trail Court to proceed
with this case in accordance with law.

In view of aforesaid fact, this Court hold that allegations
of violating the procedural rules to lay this trap has been
decided by Honorable Appellate Division and no further
discussion on this point shall bear any fruit.

Next legal point raised by Learned Advocate on behalf
of the accused person is that in view of the case of Ansar Ali Vs
State reported in 13 DLR page 162-167 and the case of Abdul
Hye Vs State reported in 20 DLR page 407/411, the recovery of
money from the accused person is not enough to award
conviction and that discovery of currency note from the person
of the accused does not necessarily prove that it was given as
bribe.

This court is in full agreement with the principal
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enunciated by Honorable High Court Division in aforesaid
cases. It is settled principle of law that mere recovery of the
bribe money is not sufficient to record a conviction unless
there is evidence that bribe had been demanded or money was
paid as bribe. In absence of any evidence of demand and
acceptance of any amount as illegal gratification, recovery
would not be alone to be ground to convict the accused
persons. In order to search out the legal proposition, we have
to go through the evidence in record and the arrive at a
decision from the facts reveal before this court.

Now let us go through the evidence to arrive-at a correct
decision on the basis of the points determined earlier.

PW-1 Md. Shafiqul Islam states in his examination-in-
chief that a seizure list was prepared on 14.06.2007 at about
5.00 pm to 5.30 pm and that he is a signatory in the seizure
list. PW-1 identifies the seizure list, Exhibit-1 and his signature
thereon, Exhibit-1(1).

In response to the cross-examination on behalf of the
accused person A. Rahim, PW-1 states that he is the owner of
Dewan Store and that his shop is to the west of the Master
Plaza and that the Nippon Sweater is beside the Master Plaza.
PW-1 also states that the garments factory of the Nippon
Sweaters is within the eye vision from his shop. PW-1 does not
know as to whether gas connection was disconnected from
Nippon Sweaters before 14.06.2007. PW-1 also states that a
RAB office called on him to the place of occurrence and that he
found many people there and also found two persons under
handcuff. PW-1 further States that a betel-cigarette shop was
kept open beside the place of occurrence. PW-1 cannot
memorize whether a shop named Shahbuddin and Sons was
kept open at the time of occurrence. PW-1 admits that there
were some hotels beside Master Plaza. PW-1 further states that

the RAB officer at first did not offer him to sign the seizure list
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and that the RAB Officer showed him an envelope kept in the
hand of the accused person. PW-1 also states that he opened
the envelope and found 10 (ten) notes of taka 500 each and
thereafter he signed the seizure list. PW-1 also states that he
does not know as to who and what purpose gave the notes to
the accused person. PW-1 also states that he has explained to
the Investigating Officer the fact what he witnessed from the
place of occurrence. Pw- Idenies the suggestions that he did
not see the occurrence or he signed the seizure list as per the
instruction of the RAB officer. PW-1 denies the suggestions
that he deposed falsely.

PW-2 Sub-Inspector Md. A. Wahab Sarker states in his
examination-in-chief that in terms of MCC No. 1879 of RAB-1,
he was deployed in duties on 14.06.2007 at Uttara and that on
the basis of secret — went information; he wen to the Nippon
Sweaters situated in front of Master Plaza under Dakkhinkhan
Police Station. PW-2 also states that two persons namely A.
Rahim and Kamruzzaman claiming them the officer/employees
of Titas Gas, demanded money to give gas connection. PW-2
further states that he caught hold of the officer/employee and
that he found in possession of A. Rahim an amount of taka
5,000 kept in an envelope and that a black colored bag was
found in the possession of the accused persons and that the bag
contained a Site Report Book and 7 (seven) distribution books
of different customers. PW-2 further states that an inventory
was prepared in presence of the witnesses and the recovered
amount for taka 5000/- consists of 10 (ten) currency notes of
Tk.500/- each having number bearing Kha Tha -4520309, PA-
6706260, Kha jha — 9775627, Ka Gha — 0983815, Kha Eyo -
8248113, Uma 1388815, Kha Ka -5121919, Ka Ka — 1556531,
KA Sa 2598687 and La -8104483. PW-2 further states that he
took the signatures of the witnesses and he also signed on the

seizure list. PW- 2 has identified his signature on the seizure
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list, Exhibit-1(2). Pw-2 has identified the seized black colored
bag, Material Exhibit-1. He has identified the seized 10 notes
for Tk.500 each, material Exhibit-11. PW-2 has adduced the
identity card of the accused persons in evidence, Material
Exhibit-1ll. PW-2 has adduced seven files relating to gas
connection of the consumers including the file of M/S Nippon
Sweaters Limited, Material Exhibit-1V series. He has also
adduced the Site Report Book of Titas Gas Transmission and
Distribution Company Limited, Material Exhibit-V.

In answerer to the cross-examination on behalf of the
accused person Md. Kamruzzaman, Pw-2 States that he has
given statements to the Investigating Officer. PW-2 denies the
suggestion that he did not claim to the Investigating officer
about the fact of information from the secret source. PW-2 also
denies the suggestions that he did not claim to the Investigating
Officer that he searched two accused persons. PW-2 admits
that the accused persons are the officer and employee of Titas
Gas Company. PW-2 denies the suggestions that the accused
persons informed him the fact of giving gas connection to the
Nippon Sweaters Ltd on 09.06.2003 or his gas line was
disconnected on 30.07.2006. PW-2 has denied various
suggestions regarding information to him by the accused
person with allegations of meter tampering by the Nippon
Sweaters and disconnection and reconnection of the meter
after paying fine. PW- 2 has admitted the fact of seizure of the
file of Nippon Sweaters from the custody of the accused person
and he has also admitted that the file contains some statements
written in it. PW-2 has also denied the suggestions that they
were provoked by the persons of the Nippon Sweaters and
arrested the accused persons on the date and at the place of
occurrence. PW-2 denies the suggestions that they were unduly
influenced by the authority of the Nippon Sweaters and seized

the documents of the accused persons. PW-2 has also denied
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the suggestions that the accused person did not take any bribe
from the spot or he was not engaged in any illegal word. He
has also denied the suggestions that the accused person was
arrested without any reason.

In answer to the cross-examination on behalf of the
accused person Md. A. Rahim, PW-2 states that at the time of
occurrence they were on duty under the leadership of Flight
Lieutenant Tohidul Islam and that some of them were with
uniforms and some of them were in civil dress. PW-2 also
states that the Nippon Sweater factory is in front of a rice-shop
and that they did not go to the rice-shop. PW-2 admits that
place of occurrence can be reached going across the rice-shop.
Pw-2 does not know as to whether gas connection in the
Sweater Factory continued at the time of occurrence. PW-2
further states that the rice- shop named Mohiuddin and Sons is
situated on a singly storied building. PW-2 also states that
after preparation of the seizure list on the spot, he let the
accused person get into their transport and took them at RAB-1
office and handed over the accused persons to the
Commanding officer of the RAB. PW-2 cannot remember when
the accused persons were forwarded to the Police Station. PW-
2 does not know as to whether the accused persons went to the
place of occurrence to execute the order of their office. Pw-2
denies the suggestions that the Nippon Sweater had grudge
against the accused persons and that they have revenged on
them upon furnishing false information to the RAB and got the
accused persons arrested by them. PW-1 also denies the
suggestions that he told the Investigating Officer that he did
not know about the fact of recovery of money. PW-2 also
denies the suggestions that no money was recovered from this
accused person or they have been used in a false case.

PW-3 Mollah Md. Towhidule Islam, Wing Commander

and Instructor, Command and Staff Training Institute,
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Bangladesh Air Force, States in his examination-in-chief that
on 14.06.2007, he was the Assistant Director, RAB-1. Pw-3
further states that Managing Director of Nippon Sweaters Mr.
Asaduzzaman Awlad complainant to him that A. and Rahim
abd Md. Kamruzzaman, employee and officer of Titas Gas,
demanded bribe for taka 15,000 from his company to provide
gas connection and meter installation in the company and that
a deal was made to pay money after gas connection. PW-3
further states that in presence of the witnesses, he along with
his aide force, took shelter beside the place of occurrence and
that after completion of the conmnection and at the eve of
payment of the bribe money, he arrested the accused persons
A. Rahim and Kamruzzaman. PW-3 also states that the seizure
list was prepared by his aide force Sub-Inspector Abdul Wahab
and thereafter Asaduzzaman Awlad lodged a FIR with
Dakkhinkhan Police Station.

In answer to the cross-examinantion by the accused
person Md. Kamruzzaman, PW-3 states that the Managing
Director of Nippon Sweaters Mr. Asaduzzaman Asaduzzzaman
Awlad did not make any written complaint to him and that
before operation, they did not prepare any list of the trap
money. PW-3 cannot remember as to whether he called on any
person from the nearby shop named Mohiuddin and Sons or
other shopkeepers to the spot. PW-3 states that Sub- Inspector
Abdul Wahab made a seizure list of the recovered money and
that he is not a witness of the seizure list. He also states that at
this moment, the seized money has not been produced before
him in Court. PW-3 further states that he did not make any
identification mark on the seized notes. PW-3 admits the fact
that he did not deliver the bribe money to the accused persons.
PW-3 also admits that no person named Mohiuddin has been
made witness of this case. PW-3 further admits that

Kamruzzaman was an employee of Titas Gas and his identity
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card was seized on the spot and that file of many customers of
Titas Gas was also seized by the seizure list. PW-3 states that
he did not scrutinize the seized files. PW-3 denies the
suggestions that at the time of making seizure list, the accused
person disclosed to him that the accused went to the spont to
give reconnection of gas in the factory which was earlier
disconnected in due process of law. PW-3 also denies the
suggestions that the accused disclosed to him that the
informant furnished untrue information and made arrangement
to get the accused person arrested. PW-3 also denies the
suggestions that the accused person asked him to scrutinize his
documents. PW-3 admits the suggestions that the bribe money
was not recovered from the person of the accused person
Kamruzzaman. PW-3 claims that the accused person was
involved with the occurrence at the time of recovery of the
bribe money. PW-3 further denies the suggestions that the
accused person Kamruzzaman is not involved with the bribe or
he ordered for arrest of Kamruzzaman because of influence by
the informant. PW-3 also denies the suggestion that
Kamruzzaman did not demand the bribe or did not accept the
bribe or he was subject to harassment by his order.

In answer to cross-examination by the account person A.
Rahim, Pw-3 states that the informant made the complaint
physically on the date of occurrence at about > pm. PW-3 also
states that being the officer of the respective area, the a
complaint complainant was made to him. He further states that
the informant is not known to him. PW-3 denies the
suggestions that the informant did not make the complaint a
complainant physically. Pw-3 also denies the suggestions that
the occurrence was not related to bribe or the numbers on the
currency notes was not told to him. Pw-3 does not know as to
whether the accused went to the case institution after gas

connection to different customers. Pw-3 denies the suggestions
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that the accused person did not demand any bride to the
informant or no bride was given to him or he did not demand
any bribe. Pw-3 denies the suggestions that the accused person
tried to conceal the fact of his theft of gas and furnished untrue
information to make this complaint. Pw-3 denies the
suggestions that he has deposed to support false information
furnished by the informant.

PW-4 Md. Fazlur Rahman states in his examination- in-
chief that he was the Officer-in-Charge of Dakkhinkhan Police
Station and on 15.06.2007 he received written FIR by the
informant and also received the arrested accused persons A.
Rahim, a Technician of Titas Gas and Kamruzzaman Sarker,
Sub-Assistant Engineer of Titas Gas along with cash for 5000
and seized alamats as detailed in the seizure list and that hr
filled up all the columns of the FIR form and recorded the case
at 16.45 hour. PW-4 has identified the FIR form, Exhibit-2, his
two signatures thereon, Exhibit-2(1) (2). He has also identified
the FIR, Exhibit-3 and his signature on the FIR, Exhibit-3(1).

In answer to the cross-examination on behalf of the
accused persons, PW-4 states that the date of occurrence is no
13.06.2007 at about 16.45 hour and on 14.06.2007 at about
17.45 hour and that the case was filed at the Police Station on
15.06.2007 at 16.45 hour and that place of occurrence is % kn
away from the Police Station. PW-4 admits the suggestion that
not the FIR form does contain as to where the accused persons
were kept before filing the FIR. PW-4 also admits that he has
not given any note on the FIR form stating that the accused
and seized alamats were produced to him at the time of filing
the FIR. PW-4 also states that according to the Ejhar, the
accused was arrested on 14.06.2008 at 17.45 hour. PW-4
denies the suggestions that he was irresponsible to record the
FIR. PW-4 also denies the suggestions that he did not receive

the accused persons, seizure list and the seized documents at
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the time of filing the FIR.

PW-5 DM Asaduzzaman Awlad states in  his
examination-in-chief that he is the informant of this case while
Md. Kamruzzaman and Md. A. Rahim are the accused persons
of this case. PW-5 also states that the accused persons are
respectively the Sub- Assistant Engineer and Technician of
Titas Gas. He also states that his factory named and styled as
Nippon Sweaters Ltd is situated at Chairman Bari,
Dakkhinkhan, Dhaka. Pw-5 also states that in order to give gas
connection, the accused persons demanded taka 15,000 to him
and that on 10.06.2007 at about 4.00 pm, he went to Demra
Office of Titas Gas Company and paid taka 2000/- to the
accused person Kamruzzaman and that the accused person A.
Rahim came to his office and took take 7000/- from his
Assistant Accountant on 13.06.2007 at 1.45 pm. Rest Pw-5 also
states that a deal was made to pay resp Tk. 6000/- would be
paid on the date of giving gas connection. PW-5 further states
that he informed the matter to RAB-1 and that the accused
person came to his factory on 14.06.2007 at 3.00 pm to give
gas connection and that the RAB personnel took shelter in civil
dress beside his office. PW-5 further states that after giving
gas connection, the accused persons Kamruzzaman and A.
Rahim came to him. PW-5 was already at the place of gas
connection. Pw-5 also states that they demanded rest Tk.6000/-
to him while he informed them that the money was kept with his
Manger Mokbul. PW-5 also states that Manager Mokbul was
earlier given an amount of taka 5000 (five thousand) having 10
currency notes for Tk 500 (five hundred) each and contained
into an envelope. PW-5 further states that the accused persons
Kamruzzaman and A. Rahim took the envelope from Mokbul
Hossain and strated counting the money then the RAB
personnel appeared in the scene from hide and caught the

accused persons red handed. PW-5 further states that the
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accused persons were caught hold of beside his gas meter and
in front of the shop named Mohiuddin and Sons. PW-5 also
states that the accused persons were caught red handed with
money and were taken to RAB office and that he also went to
the RAB office. PW-5 also states that the RAB personnel asked
him to lodge Ejhar with the Police Station. PW-5 went to the
Police Station with Computer composed Ejhar and lodged the
FIR. PW- 5 identifies his signature in the Ejhar, Exhibit-3(2).
PW-5 identifies the accused persons on the accused doc. PW-5
denies the suggestions that he has made. His whole deposition
from a note kept in his hand. PW-5 further states that he
established Nippon Sweaters Ltd in 2003 and obtained gas
connection in it in June/July, 2003 from governed company
named and styled as Titas Gas Company. PW-5 further states
that he took commercial gas connection. PW-5 admits the
suggestions that the Titas Gas Company can disconnect gas
line of a customer if any fraud in meter and meter tampering
are detected. PW-5 cannot remember as to whether first gas
connection was given in his factory on 07.06.2003. PW-5
denies the suggestions that his gas was disconnected for the
offence of meter tampering or he was fined and gas was
reconnected after realization of fine. PW-5 claims that the seal
of the meter got affected by rain. PW-5 denies the suggestion
that Kamruzzaman went to inspect his gas line on 20.03.2007
or found 8 (eight) seal of the meter to be broken or he
recommended for disconnection of his gas line or his gas was
disconnected on 09.04.2007 with allegations of meter
tampering. PW-5 further states that he does not know as to
whether his factory was fined Tk. 3,50,000 or any application
was filed for reconnection. Pw-5 claims that he does not know
the fact of application for reconnection to Badda office of Titag
gas as the matter is looked after by other persons of his office.

PW-5 claims that so far as his memory goes, the gas was
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disconnected for default to pay bills and that the bills were
paid and reconnection was given. Pw-5 denies the suggestions
that as per instruction of his authority, kamruzzaman went to
his factory on 04.06.2007 to give reconnection in his factory.
PW-5 claims that Kamruzzaman himself makes gas connection.
Pw-5 denies the suggestions that the Technician of
Kamruzzaman made the connection. Pw-5 denies the
suggestions that at the time of occurrence, Kamruzzaman was
preparing a report regarding gas connection in a nearby hotel
and that his persons called on him and inserted Tk. 5000 in his
pocked or Rahim raised objection on the spot or local people
raised voice or hearing shouting. Kamruzzaman came to the
place of occurrence and asked the fact to the persons who
arrested A. Rahim. PW-5 denies the suggestion that
Kamruzzaman was arrested because of his queries to RAB
about the cause of arrest of A. Rahim. PW-5 further states that
he did not call on any nearby person on the spot at the time of
the occurrence. PW-5 further states that he did not file any GD
with Police Station regarding paying money on 10.06.2007 and
13.06.2007. PW-5 also states that he did not make any written
complaint to the RAB. PW-5 also states that RAB made
inventory in respect of the alleged currency notes and that he
did not submit the inventory to this Court. PW-5 also states
that he did not sign in the inventory but signed on the reverse
of the currency notes. PW-5 admits that the FIR has cited the
fact of Site Report Book and that he has signature on the Site
Report Book. PW-5 admits the fact that reconnection was given
on 14.06.2007. PW-5 also admits that earlier the gas line was
kept disconnected. Pw-5 also states that the list of the
consumer is signed by the Manager of Titas Gas and that the
seized file was opened by Titas Gas to give gas connection in
his factory. Pw-5 denies the suggections that Kamruzzaman

detected many fault in his factory relating to gas connection
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and meter tampering or he has been falsely implicated to take
revenge. PW-5 denies the suggestions that the FIR is delayed
by 23 hours to make a cooked fact. Pw-5 also denies the
suggestions that the fact is untrue and as such no local
Impartial person was informed of the fact. Pw-5 also denies
the suggestions that he filed ant untrue case or deposes falsely
or no money was recovered from the accused person.

Learned Advocate for the accused person A. Rahim
adopts the aforesaid cross-examinations and further cross-
examines Pw-5. In answer to the cross- examination on behalf
of the accused persen A. Rahim, Pw-5 states that his gas
connection matters were looked after by his officials Mokbul
Hossain and A. Salam. Pw-5 further states that he does not
know as to whether the accused person went to give gas
connection as per the instructions of his higher authority Pw-5
denies the suggestion that on 13.06.2007, the accused person
did not go to his office or he did not take any money on the
date of occurrence from his person. PW-5 further denies the
suggestions that he cooked a fact to escape from his misdeeds.
PW-5 denies the suggestions that no money was recovered
from this accused person A. Rahim from the place of
occurrence. Pw-5 also denies the suggestions that he deposes
falsely.

PW-6 Md. Mokbul Hossain states in his examination- in-
chief that in 2007 he was the Manager of Nippon Sweaters and
that being directed by his Managing Director Dewan
Mohammad Asaduzzaman, he on 14.06.2007 at about 5.45 pm
delivered an envelope Techniciand to the Twehnician A. Rahim
and that the envelope contained 10 (ten) currency notes for Tk
500 each. Pw-6 also states that while A. Rahim opened the
envelope and started counting the money, RAB Members,
lurking beside the spot, caught hold of him and prepared a

seizure list. Pw-6 also states that he is a witness of the seizure
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list. PW-6 identifies his signature in the seizure list, Exhibit-
1(3).

Learned Advocate for the accused person Kamruzzaman
declined to cross-examine PW-6.

In answer to cross-examination by the accused person A.
Rahim, PW-6 states that on the date of occurrence, he reached
his office at about 9.00 am and remained in the office till about
10.00 pm. PW-6 further states that his MD came to the office in
the morning and left the office after 10.00 pm. PW-6 admits the
fact that the gas line of the factory was disconnect at several
occasions and that the company paid fine for gas line. PW-6
further states that to his knowledge, gas line was disconnected
for dues of gas bills. Pw-6 denies the suggestions that the gas
line was not disconnected for dues of bills. PW-6 does not
know as to whether gas line of the factory was ever
disconnected for mater tampering. PW-6 does not know as to
whether the accused person reached at the place of occurrence
in response to the order of the authority or on the call of the
employees of the company. Pw-6 denies the suggestions that he
did not give money to the accused person or the accused was
not apprehended at the time of counting money or the accused
person did not demand money to them or the accused did not
receive money from the informant. Pw-6 also states that on the
date of occurrence, he went to the RAB office from his office.
PW-6 also states that the MD and many others also went to the
RAB office. Pw-6 denies the suggestions that the accused was
kept in the RAB office for 24 hours and during the time the
story of recovery of money was created. Pw-6 denies the
suggestions that he has deposed falsely as per the direction of
his MDD and to conceal his own offence.

PW-7 Md. Zahid Hossain, now Deputy Director, Head
office, ACC, states that he was Assistant Deputy Director and

was assigned with the investigation of this case on 17.06,2008
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and took the case record from the previous Investigating
Officer. He visited the place of occurrence and recorded the
statements of the witnesses under section 161 of the Code of
Criminal Procedure. PW-6 found proof of involvement of the
accused persons with the offence and submitted memo of
evidence on 24.02.2009 to the Anti-Corruption Commission
recommending charge sheet against both the accused persons
for the under section 161 of the Penal Code and under section
5(2) of the Prevention of Corruption Act, 1947 and that
thereafter accorded sanction from the Commission to file
Charge sheet against the accused persons. Pw-7 forwarded the
charge sheet to the Court on 08.05.2009. Pw-7 has identified
the sanction letter dated 22.04.2009 by the Commission to file
charge sheet against the accused person, Exhibit-4.

In answer to the cross-examination on behalf of the
accused person Kamruzzaman, PW-7 states that tont the
occurrence dated 14.06.2007 took place in frot of a rice-shop
named Mohiuddin and Sons and that he did not testify the rice-
shop owner at the time of investigation. Pw-7 also states that
he did not testify the FIR cited Assistant Accountant
Mohammad Ali. Pw-7 further states that no officer of the
factory made any statement to him regarding payment of
money on 10.06.2007 and on 13.06.2007. PW-7 admits the fact
that at the time of arrest of the accused persons on 14.06.2007,
identity card of the accused persons, a Site Report, 7 (seven)
file cover of Titas Gas Transmission and Distribution and a
black bag were recovered from the accused persons. PW-7 did
not testify the genuineness of the identity cards and that he
found in his investigation that the accused persons were the
employees of Titas Gas. Pw-7 also states that during
investigation, he did not visit the office at Demra of Titas Gas.
Pw-7 admits the fact that the seized Site Report contains the
fact that RMS with Cabinet be reconstructed on 14.06.2007 at
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16.00 hour and that the report contains the signature of
accused person Sub-Assistant Engineer and that amongst the
07 files, a files belongs to M/S Nippon a sweaters of contains
Sweatera Ltd and that the work list cotains the signature of the
Manager of Titas Gas. PW-7 admits the suggestions that the
file belonging to the name of Nippon Sweaters contains details
descriptions of the service provided to the customer and that
the file contains the facts of meter tampering and so many
other allegations against the Nippon Sweaters regarding
connection, tampering and penalty. PW-7 admits the
suggestions that he has mentioned in the charge sheet that at
the time of making report by the accused person Kamruzzaman
in a nearby Jhupri (tiny) hotel, a person of Nippon Sweaters at
about 17.30 hour called on Technician Abdur Rahim and took
him away and inserted taka into his pocket and dunking RAB
members, larking previously, arrested Abdur Rahim. Pw-7 also
states that he has stated in his charge sheet that hearing
shouting, Sub-Assistant Engineer Kamruzzaman asked the RAB
personnel the cause of arrest of Abdur Rahm and that the RAB
personnel immediately arrested him. PW-7 also states that
witness Abdul Wahab, in his statement under section 161 of the
Code of Criminal Procedure, has stated to him that he does not
know as to why money was given and taken. PW-7 also states
that Abdul Wahab did not claim to him that Abdur Rahim and
Kamruzzaman claimed money to provide gas connection to the
factory. PW-7 further states that Abdul Wahab did not claim to
him that the two officers were caught red handed and that
Abdul Wahab did not claim to him the fact making inventory by
him. PW-7 further states that Abdul Wahab told him the fact of
making seizure list. PW- 7 did not find any information
regarding making aby inventory. PW-7 also states that PW-1
in his statement to him under section 161 of the Code of

Criminal Procedure told that the place of occurrence was not
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visible from his shop. Pw-7 also states that PW-1 told him that
he did not see any give and take of money. PW-7 also states
that according to the FIR, the accused persons were arrested
on 14.06.2007 at 17.45 hour and were taken to the RAB office
and that according to the FIR, the accused persons were
handed over to the Police Station on 15.06.2007 at 16.45 hour.
PW-7 further Previous states that neither he nor his precious
Investigating officers forwarded the accused persons in court
to record their confessional statements. PW-7 denies the
suggestions that the informant was aggrieved by the accused
person Kamruzzaman and took part in unholy collousion with
RAB officers and filed a false case against him. PW-7 also
denies the suggestions that the statements of the FIR is untrue
or the charge sheet is mechanical.

In response to the cross-examination on behalf of
accused person Abdur Rahim, PW-7 denies the suggestions
that the seized money was not recovered from Abdur Rahim.

The accused person DW-1 Md. Kamruzzaman Sarker
States in his examination in chief that he is now an Assistant
Engineer in Titas Gas Transmission and Distribution Company
and that he worked in his officer on 11.06.2007 and that on
11.06.2007 and 12.06.2007, he was out of the station for
official works. DW-1 came to his office on 12.06.2007 and the
dispatch department of his office handed over him some files
including the file of informants factory named Nippon Sweaters
and he was asked by his office to do a task and he asked
Technician Abdur Rahim to collect materials from treasury
who collected material and that on the next date i.e. on
14.06.2007 they stared from office for different officers
including Nippon Sweater to provide connection/reconnection
and that at about 3.00 hour they went to the alleged factory
named Nippon Sweaters and made reconnection. DW-1 also

states that he prepared the report sitting in a Jhupri (tiny)
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hotel and asked a person of Nippon Sweater to get the report
signed by the MD of the company and he got the report signed
by the MD. DW-1 also states that the person told him that the
MD asked him to make over the RMS. After some time, his
office- driver Shahjahan told DW-1 that Abdur Rahim Rahim
was arrested by RAB. DW-1 put the files together and went to
the place and found two persons holding two hands of Abdur
Rahim. DW-1 asked the reason of the arrest and he showed
DW-1 a nearby RAB officer. DW-1 went to the RAB officer and
asked the reason of arrest of Abdur Rahim when he asked his
(DW-1) identity. DW-1 disclosed his identity to the RAB officer
when the RAB officer took him to Abdur Rahim and disclosed
that Rahim took money for works. He also told the DW-1 that
they had intentionally stopped gas line of Nippon Sweaters for
2/3 months. DW-1 also states that a nearby person was telling
that they (DW) have damaged him. DW-1 showed the file of
Nippon Sweater to the RAB officer and told that he got the file
on 13.06.2007 from his office to execute works. In response to
the beckoning of the RAB officer, he was apprehended and the
RAB officer slapped on his left ear. DW-1 also states that after
some time of the occurrence, they were taken to the RAB office
and they were interrogated till deep of night and that in the
afternnon of the next day, they were again taken in front of
Nippon Sweater and a person got into the transport and that
the RAB officer handed over a typed paper to the person and
asked him to read and that the person signed the paper DW-1
also states that from his signature, it was know that the person
was Asaduzzaman Hawladar, DW-1 also states that thereafter
they were taken to Dakkhinkhan Police Sation and they
remained in the police station all the night long. DW-1 denies
the fact of taking money on 20.03.2007 10.03.207. DW-1 also
states that he at first visited Nippon Sweater on 20.03.2007 and
filed a report against the institution and he was offered 40/50
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thousand taka and was asked not to enter into the RMS room
but he refused the proposal. DW-1 also states that the case was
filed against him out of grudge.

In response to the cross-examination on behalf of the
prosecution, DW-1 denies the suggestions that he has been
carrying a small piece of paper in his hand or he has given
examination-in-chief with the help of the paper. DW-1 denies
the suggestions that they took bribe for taka 5000 from the
informant. He has further denied the fact that after taking
bribe he was arrested by RAB. DW-1 also denies the
suggestions. That an amount of taka 5000 was recovered by
RAB from him and his companion. DW-1 also denies the fact
that the recovered money was seized on the spot under a
seizure list in presence of the witnesses. DW- 1 also denies the
fact that he has deposed falsely to escape from conviction.

DW-2 Md. Abdur Rahim states in his examination- in-
chief that he went on retirement as a Technician of Titas Gas
Trabsmission and distribution Company. DW-1 further states
that he was deployed in Demra Office and on 13.06.2007 he
performed his duties at his office and he made ready of the
papers of reconnection of 7 (seven) files and visited the site
onl4.06.2007 and that they visited Nippon Sweaters at about
3.00 hour and provided reconnection in the factory and
accompanied Kamruzzaman in a Jhupri hotel nearby the
factory and report was written there and suddenly a person
told him that RAB persons on civil dress were calling him.
DW-2 followed the person and went to the place. DW-2 was
given no chance to talk and he was caught and was
handcuffed. DW-2 further states that while he went to RAB
from the hotel, Kamruzzaman had been. Sitting there. DW-2
also states that after being handcuffed, Kamruzzaman came to
the place and he was soon handcuffed by the RAB personnel.
DW-2 also states that they were boarded into the RAB van and
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were taken to the RAB Office. On the Nest morning, they were
taken to the Police Station and after one day, they were sent to
the Jail custody.

In response to the cross-examination on behalf of the
prosecution, DW-2 denies the suggestions that he was arrested
by RAB for taking bribe for taka 5000. DW-2 further denies the
suggestions that on 14.06.2007 he and Kamruzzaman were
caught red handed by RAB while taking bribe for taka 5000
after providing gas connection to informant’s factory named
Nippon Sweaters. DW-1 also denies the suggestions that he
deposed falsely to save him.

These are all the evidence in record.

Amongst the 7(seven) PWs examined, PW-1 Md.
Shafiqul Islam is a seizure list witness who has identified the
seizure list and his signature thereon. In his cross-examination,
he has very candidly revealed the vital fact of this case. He is a
shopkeeper and his shop is 5/7 shop away from the Nippon
Sweaters factory. He has candidly stated in his cross-
examination that a RAB officer called on him and took him to
the place of occurrence and that he found many people on the
spot ant found the two accused persons under handcuff. He
also asserts that the RAB officer at first did not ask him to sign
the seizure list. An envelope kept in the hand of accused person
was shown to him. PW-1 opened the envelope, counted the
money and found 10(ten) currency note of Tk. 500 each and
thereafter signed the seizure list. His evidence is established by
the cross-examination of the defense. Learned Advocate for the
accused person Md. Kamruzzaman by way of cross-
examination of the Investigating Olfficer PW-7 Md. Zahid
Hossain, attempts to prove that evidence by this witness before
this Court is inconsistent with his statement under section 161
of the Code of Criminal Procedure. But I have very minutely

gone through the statement of this witness given by him to the
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Investigating Olfficer under section 161 of the Code of
Criminal Procedure and hold that his statement given to the
Investigating Olfficer is very much consistent with his evidence
in Court. The position of the Investigating Olfficer, in this case
suffers from nepotism towards defense and we shall definitely
discuss the matter while discussing his evidence. Having gone
through evidence led by seizure list witness PW-1 Md. Shafiqul
Islam, this Court holds that he is an independent and impartial
ocular witness of search and seizure of the recovered bribe
money and his evidence inspires credibity to this Court and
that his evidence could not be shaken by way of cross-
examination.

PW-2 Sub-Inspector Md. Abdul Wahab Sarker is a
member of the trap party laid by RAB and he has asserted in
his evidence that on the basis of secret information, he went to
the place of occurrence on 14.06.2007. He has also asserted
that the accused persons Kamruzzaman and Adur Rahim being
the officer/employee of Titas Gas Company demanded bribe to
give gas connection to Nippon Sweater factory and that they
were caught red handed on the spot. He has also asserted that
an amount of taka 5000 (five) thousand kept in an envelope
was found in the possession of A. Rahim. PW-2 in this evidence
has given datailed description of the seized articles. He has
specifically stated the numbers of the recovered currency notes
and has identified the same before this Court and the currency
notes, tendered in evidence, have been duly exhibited. In his
cross- examination, source of his knowledge about the
information of the occurrence has been seriously contended.
Having gone through entire evidence in record, it appears that
the information of alleged bribery was given to RAB-1. The
RAB-1 Commander Might have not disclosed the fact to this
PW-2 for which he might have claimed the source of

information to be secret. The defense by way of cross-
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examination of this witness has put forwarded his own case
which this witness has denied. PW-2 executed the search and
apprehended the accused persons on the spot and recovered
the bribe money from the person of accused A. Rahim and a
seizure list was prepared on the spot. I find no cognizable
inconsistency in the evidence of this witness. PW-2 is the
person who apprehended the accused persons on the spot and
recovered the bribe money from the person of A. Rahim and
seized the recovered article and made the Seizure list under his
own signature.

PW-3 Wing Commander, Bangladesh Air Force, Mollah
Md. Tohidul Hassan was the CO of RAB-1 and the trap was
laid at the place of occurrence under his leadership. Managing
Director of Nippon Sweaters Asaduzzaman Awlad informed
him that A. Rahim and Md. Kamruzzaman being employee and
officer to Titas Gas Company demanded bribe for taka 15,000
to him to gave gas connection in his company. PW-3 has also
asserted that in terms of the information, he along with his
forces took shelter beside the place of occurrence and after
connection of gas, they apprehended the accused persons A.
Rahim and Kamruzzaman in presence of the witnesses and that
seizure list was prepared on the spot by his aide force SI Abdul
Wahab and that a FIR was lodged by the informant at
Dakkhinkhan Police Station. PW-3 in his cross-examination on
behalf of accused person Md. Kamruzzaman admits the fact of
seizure of some customer-files of Titas Gas Transmission and
Distribution Company. He has further admitted that bribe
money has not been recovered from the person of
Kamruzzaman but at the time of recovery of the bribe money
he was involved with the occurrence. PW-3 has denied other
suggestions put to him by the defense. On careful scrutiny of
the evidence led by PW-3, it appears that the informant
disclosed the fact of demand of bride by the accused person to
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this RAB CO and thereafter he laid the trap and that both the
accused persons were caught red handed on the spot and that
the bribe money was recovered from the person of accused A.
Rahim in presence of witnesses, Evidence led by PW-3 has not
been shaken by way of cross- examination of the defense.

PW-4 Md. Fazlur Rahman was the Officer-in- Charge of
Dakkhinkhan PS and on 15.06.2007 at about 15.06.2007; he
received the accused persons, seizure list, seized articles and
recorded the FIR. The defense cross-examined him at length
but failed make out any material discrepancy.

PW-5 DM Asaduzzaman Awlad has claimed in his
evidence that the accused persons Md. Kamruzzaman and A.
Rahim demanded bribe for taka 15000 to him to give gas
connection in his factory and that he informed the fact of
demand of bribe to RAB-1. PW-5 has further claimed that he
on 10.06.2007 at 4.00 pm went to Demra Office of Titas Gas
and gave taka 2000 to accused person Kamruzzaman. But his
claim on this particular point is not supported by the version of
his own FIR. He has claimed in his FIR that on 10.06.2007
Kamruzzaman came to his office and took taka 2000 from his
Assistant Accountant Mohammad Ali. In view of the said
position, evidence led by PW-5 regarding payment of money on
10.06.2007 is not acceptable. PW-5 has also asserted the fact
that on 13.07.2007 at about 1.45 pm accused person A. Rahim
came to his office and took away taka 7000 from his Assistant
Accountant. PW-5 has further asserted that a deal was made to
pay the rest money at the time of providing gas connection.
PW-5 has also asserted that on 14.06.2007 at about 3.00 pm,
the accused persons came to his factory while the RAB
personnel took shelter nearby places in civil dress. PW-5 also
asserts that after providing gas connection, the accused
persons came to him. He was present at the place of gas

connection. PW-5 further asserts that the accused persons
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demanded rest taka 6000 to him while he told that the money
was kept to his Manager Mokbul Hossain. PW-5 further states
that Mokbul was present there who handed over taka 5000 kept
into an envelope to the accused persons Kamruzzaman and A.
Rahim and they received it and started counting the currency
notes and that the RAB personnel appeared to the scene and
caught the accused persons red handed. PW-5 has also
asserted that the place of recovery of the bribe money was
beside his gas- meter which is in front of a rice-shop named
Mohiuddin and sons. PW-5 has been cross-examined at length
touching the case of the defense. We have very carefully
scrutinized the evidence of PW-S and hold that he has
concealed some facts regarding disconnection, reconnection of
his meter and penalty awarded to him in respect of meter
connection. We have also not accepted his evidence regarding
his allegation of the first payment of bribe to the accused
person Kamruzzaman. This Case was taken to the Honorable
High Court Division by the accused person Kamruzzaman and
after a long legal battle of 5(five) years, this case was sent
back to this Court for trial and the informant led his evidence.
Human memory relating to incidental facts may be faded by
elapse of time. But having gone through evidence led by PW-5,
I candidly hold that he has very successfully asserted the facts
relating to demand of bribe, acceptance of the same and
recovery of the bribe money by trap and his evidence on these
points have not been disproved by way of cross-examination.
On the date of occurrence, PW-6 Md. Mokbul Hossain
was the Manager of Nippon Sweaters. PW-6 has asserted the
fact that on 14.06.2007, at 5.45 pm, he handed over an
envelope containing 10 (ten) currency notes to Abdur Rahim
and that while Rahim was counting the money, RAB caught
hold of him and prepared a seizure list on the spot and that he

signed the seizure list. PW-6 has been crossed examined in
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details on behalf of the accused person A. Rahim touching his
own defense and he has denied material allegations relating to
the charges of this case.

The Investigating Olfficer PW-7 Md. Zahid Hossain, now
Deputy Director, Anti-Corruption Commission, Head Olffice,
Dhaka, has asserted in his examination-in-chief that during
investigation he found involvement of the accused persons with
the offence and he filed memo of evidence to the Commission
recommending charge sheet against the accused persons.

We have observed earlier that Learned Advocate for the
accused person in his argument has claimed that the
Investigating Olfficer in his investigation report has disowned
the case of the prosecution and as such sanction by the
Commission to file charge sheet against the accused persons
was illegal and abuse of power and the accused persons are
entitled To get acquittal.

We want to produce here the relevant part of the
investigation report which reads as follows, “®e T 39.90
TG IS I8! RITHeeT [eons CoRT ST [NAT GG 97 9F Jfer
RPN &3 FIRICE 120 (G [V Vel GIw1 GIBeR] 12cel 97 (2lewp 88
CWC P TIIT CETFG Gls TRICF PO P/ (Z {5 o ©A-7%8
ZICPTT PPN VT PG e W8 RICT EPOITT FIFY
[erezloT FCeT OILFE WL P QFCIT P/ ST FF A TS
PR CTCS A7 AN A A GG 497 T 97 W 42T
13T oG TV

The Investigating Officer PW-5 in his cross-examination
by the learned Advocate for the accused person Md.
Kamruzzaman Sarker has admitted aforesaid facts of the
charge sheet to the effect, “fy 5o G@d IR &, AN
PG AHTE JAC ZIehea [eE (oF) FRF T 39.90 TR
87 CTRGIHT 9F e GRIARIT ST FRIP (G [V e’ b1t
TR 17031 97 (A 68 (I QP T (FTFGH ST TR T

PCT/
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WA WA e e @ Gy R 3, 2 s
PN I GF CEHPCC e WFH FRIE QI B9 ferearn
P ©ICP 8 1T TP &FOIT e/’

If aforesaid version of the investigation report and
aforesaid quoted part of the evidence by the Investigating
officer stand true, no charge sheet can be filed against the
accused persons. Who told the Investigating Officer about the
aforesaid fact? Who told him that a person called on A. Rahim
from the Jhupri hotel and inserted money in his pocket? Who
told him that hearing shouting Kamruzzaman asked the RAB
personnel about the arrest of A. Rahim and RAB also arrested
him? Answers of these three “Who” are to be probed into the
materials submitted by the Investigating officer with his
investigation report. The Investigating officer is not an ocular
witness of any facts of this case. His knowledge about the facts
of this case is from the statements of witnesses under section
161 of the Code of Criminal Procedure and from the
documents seized in connection with this case. The seized
documents do not support aforementioned facts. Statements of
total 5 (five) witnesses, under section 161 of the Code of
Criminal Procedure, have been recorded in this case and all
the statements have been recorded by this Investigating
Officer, On careful scrutiny of the statements of the witnesses
under section 161 of the Code of Criminal Procedure recorded
by this Investigating Olfficer, this Court holds that none of the
witnesses disclosed to him the aforesaid facts as stated in the
charge sheet and evidence quoted above, Rather their
statements are almost consistent with the evidence led by them
in this Court. The Investigating Officer has given charge sheet
against the accused persons and at the same time has imported
unwarranted and untrue disturbing features in his report to
give benefit to the accused persons. Having gone through the
evidence led by DW-2 A. Rahim, I hold that this accused
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person also does no claim that money was inserted by someone
into his pocket on the date of occurrence. DW-2 is mum about
the recovery of the bribe money from his possession but claims
that false case has been filed against him. Having gone
through the facts and surrounding circumstances of this case, |
hold that before filing the investigation report, the
Investigating Officer Md. Zahid Hossain was extremely biased
by the accused person Md. Kamruzzaman Sarker and the
Investigating Officer was in deep collusion with the said
accused to prepare a charge sheet having elements of acquittal
in it and he has so done. Bui his aforesaid version of charge
sheet is not any supported by nay element, oral or
documentary, collected by him during investigation. Moreover,
according to the FIR, Mohammad Ali, an Assistant Accountant
of Nippon Sweaters factory, is a witness to prove the payment
of first phase of the bribe money. Because of illegal collusion
with the said accused person, Investigating Olfficer Md. Zahid
Hossain has not examined said Mohammad Ali and did not cite
him as witness of this case. This effort is the W also an attempt
to give benefit to he defense. We are extremely dissatisfied with
the conduct of the Investigating Officer Md. Zahid Hossain and
recommend the Anti-Corruption Commission to take legal
action against him for this grave offence.

As the Investigating Olfficer is not an ocular witness of
this case and as he has not collected any material to
substantiate his aforementioned version of the investigation
report and as he is a formal witness and as he has filed charge
sheet against the accused persons, I hold that his above quoted
version of the charge sheet and his above quoted oral
testimony shall not affect the merit of this case and that the fate
of this case shall be decided on the strength of both oral and
documentary evidence recorded by this Court.

The defense by way of examination of the DW-1 and
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DW-2 has claimed that the accused persons being directed by
their legal authority went to the Nippon Sweaters factory on
the date of occurrence to give reconnection of gas line in the
factory and that they are not involved with the offence of
alleged bribery and that they are victims of the grudge of the
informant because of their adverse relation with the informant
regarding imposition of a penalty to the factory on the basis of
a report by the accused person Md. KamruzzamanSarker.
Having gone through the seized documents, I hold that earlier
Nippon Sweaters was subject to disconnection of the gas line
and also subject to fine for various allegations. But it does not
justify the case of the defense that the accused person did not
take bribe or the case has been filed out of grudge. Learned
Advocate for the defense has emphasized that the accused
person went to the place of occurrence to perform their duties
and as such it cannot be presumed that they went to the spot to
take bribe. On this point, I hold that it is the common scenario
of this society that the owners of this republic, against their
will, have to pay bribe to get their legitimate services from
govt./semi-govt./  autonomous  organizations/other  govt.
functionaries and these servants of the republic go to provide
legitimate services to the citizens but often they ate found
taking bribe. Therefore, it is not so essential to identify as to
whether accused person visited the place of occurrence to
perform their official duties, What is to be asserted is that as to
whether the accused person demanded any bribe to give
alleged gas connection and as to whether allegations against
them are proved or not. We disbelieve the case of the defense
regarding their claim of non-involvement with the alleged
offence.

Having gone through the evidence of the informant PW-
5 DM Asaduzzaman Awlad, it is proved by direct ocular

evidence that the accused persons A. Rahim and Md.
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Kamruzzaman demanded bribe for taka 15,000 to the
informant and the informant made allegations to RAB-1. PW-3
Mollah Md. Tohidul Islam, Assistant Director, RAB has proved
the fact that the informant told him that the accused persons
demanded bribe for taka 15,000 to the informant. The
informant is his evidence in Court has further proved the fact
that after giving gas connection on 14.06.2007, the accused
persons Kamruzzaman and A. Rahim came to him and
demanded rest Tk. 6000 of the bribe money. Therefore, demand
of bribe money by the accused persons to the informant is
proved by way of direct evidence as well as circumstantial
evidence.

As the FIR cited witness Mohammad Ali has not been
cited in the charge sheet by the Investigating office as witness,
the fact of giving bribe for taka 2000 on 10.06.2007 to the
accused person Md. Kamruzzaman and fact of giving bribe for
taka 7000 to the accused person A. Rahim by said Mohammad
Ali has not been proved for want of direct oral evidence. It be
noted here that charges against the accused persons were
framed only with the allegations that on 14.06.2007 at about
17.45 hour, the accused persons took bribe for taka 5000 from
the s Manager of the informant.

Having gone through the evidence led by PW-1, PW-2,
PW-3, and PW-5, I hold that they have given corroborative
evidence to the effect that the accused persons were
apprehended by the personnel of RAB on 14.06.2007 at 17.45
hour from the place of Occurrence situated nearby Nippon
Sweaters Company and in front of a rice- shop named
Mohiuddin and Sons and bribe money for taka 5000 along with
some customers files, Site Report Book and a black colored
bag were recovered from them. Evidence led by Pw-6 Md.
Mokbul Hossain makes it specific that bribe money was given

by him and that the money was handed over to accused person
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A. Rahim and as soon as Rahim stared counting the money,
RAB apprehended him. Evidence led by PW-1, Pw-2 and PW-3
prove the facts that both the accused persons were
apprehended on the spot and the bribe money was recovered
from the person of the accused person A. Rahim while accused
person Kamruzzaman was with him and that RAB also seized
some files from Kamruzzaman from the spot. Seized money and
other articles have been produced for inspection of this Court
and the seized money and the articles have been duly admitted
in evidence.

Having gone through the evidence in record and taking
into consideration of the surrounding circumstances of this
case, I hold that both the accused persons demanded bribe to
the informant and that a trap was laid by RAB and that
accused persons A. Rahim and Kamruzzaman were arrested by
the trap party on the spot while giving and taking bribe and
that at the very moment of arrest, the bribe money was
recovered from the person of the accused person A. Rahin).
The facts and circumstances, helps to presume that both the
accused persons Rahim and Md. Kamruzzaman accepted the
bribe money for taka 5000 (five thousand) though at the very
moment of apprehending the accused persons, the bribe money
was found in the possession of the accused person A Rahim.

Therefore, the prosecution succeeds to prove the fact of
demand of bribe, it acceptance and recovery of the bribe
money from the possession of the accused persons.

In view of aforesaid discussions, [ hold that the
prosecution has succeeded to prove the charge under section
161 of the Penal Code and under section 5(2) of the Prevention
of Corruption Act, 1947 against both the accused persons Md.
Kamruzzaman Sarker and A. Rahim beyond reasonable doubts.

Titas Gas Transmission and Distribution Ltd is a fully

government owned public limited company and its share

QB 3- I LS AP (A1 G0 TS 779 G /1 FfeT (B A= Tyeed fon 779 fes =611

B1-25/5b-55(F) fSIfd 2@-53-dbr

FSICTD A5 (2T- FPEACHR *1A1-R-bbr /20 Sbr-2055/(7F5)-29-53-205b-3,00,000 FA|



61

TG 8 STt

capital is held by the Government and that salaries and other
service benefits of the employees/ officers of this Company are
given from the fund of this company. Resultantly, the accused
persons Md. Kamruzzaman Sarker and A. Rahim are deemed
to be public servants within the description given under section
21 of the Penal Code.

Accused persons being the public servants, by corrupt
and illegal means and abusing their position as public
servants, obtained gratification from the informant to provide
gas connection to the factory which the accused persons are
obliged to do as their duties in their official capacity and as
such they have committed offences under section 161 of the
Penal Code and under section 5(2) of the Prevention of
Corruption Act, 1947.

But section 26 of the General Clauses Act, 1897
Provides to the effect,

“Where an act or omission constitutes an offence under
two or more enactments, then the offender shall be liable to be
prosecuted and punished under either or any of those
enactments, but shall not be liable to be punished twice for the
same offence.”

In view of aforesaid circumstances, 1 hold that the
accused persons shall be only sentenced under section 5(2) of
the Prevention of Corruption Act, 1947.

Having gone through the evidence in record, it appears
that both the accused persons are on equal footing committing
the offence. Resultantly, I deem it fit that each of the accused
persons shall be sentenced to rigorous imprisonment for five
years and with fine for taka 25,000 (twenty five thousand).

Hence, it is

ORDERED
That the prosecution has succeeded to prove the charges

under section 161 of the Penal Code, 1860 And under section
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5(2) of the Prevention of Corruption Act, 1947 against the
accused persons namely, 1) Md. Kamruzzaman Sarker and 2)
Md. A. Rahim beyond all reasonable doubts and they are found
guilty and convicted under aforesaid laws.

Each of accused persons Md. Kamruzzaman Sarker and
Md. A. Rahim be sentenced under section 5(2) of the
Prevention of Corruption Act, 1947 to rigorous imprisonment
for a period of 5 (five) years with fine for taka 25,000 (twenty
five thousand) and in default to pay the fine, each of them shall
suffer further rigorous imprisonment for three months.

The period during which the accused persons were in
custody prior to this conviction, shall be deducted from the
above period of imprisonment.

Subject to expiry of the period of appeal, seized
documents shall be returned to the respective offices
wherefrom the documents were seized/called for.

After expiry of the period of appeal, let the seized money
be handed over to the informant.

Send the convict-accused person Md. Kamruzzaman
Sarker in jail custody under conviction warrant.

Accused person Md. A. Rahim is fugitive. Issue warrant
against him. Sentence of accused person Md. A. Rahim shall
commence to run from the date of his arrest or surrender as
the case may be.

Let a copy of this judgment and order along with the
copy of FIR, Charge Sheet, evidence of the witnesses,
statements of the witnesses under section 161 of the Code of
Criminal Procedure be sent to the Chairman Anti-Corruption
Commission, Head Office, Dhaka for legal action against the
Investigating Olfficer Md. Zahid Hossain, now Deputy
Director, Anti-Corruption Commission, Head Office, Dhaka.

For information and necessary action, let a copy of this

order be sent to:
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1. Secretary, Anticorruption Commission, Head office,
Dhaka.
2. Managing Director, Titas Gas Transmission and

Distribution Company Limited, Dhaka to take legal steps
against the convict accused persons.

3. Learned Chief Metropolitan Magistrate, Dhaka.

4. Learned District Magistrate, Dhaka.

Composed & Corrected by me.

Sd/- Shaikh Nazmul Alam Sd/- Shaikh Nazmul Alam
Special Judge (District & Special Judge (District &

Sessions Judge) Sessions Judge)
4™ Special Judge, Court, 4™ Special Judge, Court,
Dhaka. Dhaka.
11.10.2020
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GOVERNMENT OF THE PEOPLE’S REPUBLIC OF
BANGLADESH
WARRANT OF PRECEDENCE, 1986
(Revised up to July, 2020)

Cabinet Division

[Published in the Bangladesh Gazette, Extraordinary, dated the 20th

September, 1986.]

GOVERNMENT OF THE PEOPLE’S REPUBLIC OF BANGLADESH

PRESIDENT’S SECRETARIAT
Cabinet Division
NOTIFICATION
Dhaka, September 11, 1986
(With amendments up to July, 2020)

No. CD- 10/1/85-Rules/361.- In Supersession of all previous

notification on the Warrant of Precedence, the President is pleased to

direct that the following table be henceforth observed with respect to the

precedence of persons hereinafter named, namely:-

1.

2.

3.

[4.

5.

President of the Republic

Prime Minister of the Republic

Speaker of the Parliament]

Chief Justice of Bangladesh Former Presidents of the Republic
Cabinet Ministers of the Republic Chief Whip

Deputy Speaker of the Parliament Leader of the Opposition in
Parliament

Persons holding appointments accorded status of a Minister
without being members of the Cabinet.

Ambassadors Extraordinary and Plenipotentiary and High
Commissioners of Commonwealth countries accredited to
Bangladesh.

Chief Election Commissioner.

Deputy Chairman of the Planning Commission.

Deputy leader of the Opposition in Parliament.

Judges of the Supreme Court (Appellate Division)

Ministers of State of the Republic Whip.

Election Commissioners.

Judges of the Supreme Court (High Court Division)
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10.
11.

12.

13.
14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

[Persons holding appointments accorded status of a Minister of
State.]

Deputy Ministers of the Republic.

Envoys Extraordinary and Ministers Plenipotentiary accredited to
Bangladesh.

[Persons holding appointments accorded status of a Deputy
Minister.]

Cabinet Secretary

Chiefs of Staff of the Army, Navy and Air Force.

Principal Secretary to the Government.

Members of the Parliament.

Visiting Ambassadors and High Commissioners not accredited to
Bangladesh.

Attorney-General

Comptroller and Auditor-General

Ombudsman.

[Governor, Bangladesh Bank.]

Chairman, Public Service Commission.

Chairman, University Grants commission.

Inspector General of Police.

Members, Planning Commission.

Officers of the rank of Major General in the army and equivalent
in the Navy and the Air force.

Secretaries to the Government including Secretary to the
Parliament.

Charge-d’ affaires apied of Foreign Countries.

Director General of the National Security Intelligence.

Full-time Members, University Grants Commission.

National Professors.

Officers holding the status of Secretaries to the Government.
Vice-chancellors of Universities.

Mayors of Civic Corporation within the jurisdiction of their
respective Corporations.

Additional Attorney-General.

Additional Secretaries to the Government.

Chairman, Atomic Energy Commission.

Chairman, Board of Land Administration.

Chairman, Bangladesh Agricultural Development Corporation.

Chairman, Bangladesh Chemical Industries Corporation.
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Chairman, Bangladesh Jute Mills Corporation.

Chairman, Bangladesh Oil, Gas and Mineral Corporation.

Chairman, Bangladesh Power Development Board.

Chairman, Bangladesh Steel and Engineering Corporation.

Chairman, Bangladesh Sugar and Food Industries Corporation.

Chairman, Bangladesh Textile Mills Corporation.

Chairman, Bangladesh Water Development Board.

Chairman, Tarrif Commission.

Charged-d’ affaires ad-interim of Foreign Countries.

Director-General of Anti-Corruption.

Executive Vice-Chairman, Bangladesh Agricultural Research

Council.

Managing Director, Bangladesh Krishi Bank.

Managing Director, Sonali Bank.

Professors of Universities in Selection Grade.

Visiting Ambassadors and High Commissioners of Bangladesh.
20. Chairman, Bangladesh Council of Scientific and Industrial

Research.

Chairman Tea Board.

Chairman T&T Board.

Chief Architect to the Government.

Chief Conservator of Forests.

Chief Engineer, Roads and Highways Department.

Chief Engineer, Public Works Department.

[Executive Chairman, Bangladesh Export Processing Zone

Authority.]

Director- General, Department of Agriculture Extension.

Director of Fisheries.

Director- General of Health Services.

Director of Livestock Services.

Director General of Primary Education.

Director General Secondary and Higher Secondary Education.

Director General of Technical Education.

Division Chief, Planning commission.

Managing Director Bangladesh Biman.

Managing Director, of other Nationalised Commercial Banks.

Members of the National Board of Revenue.

Members, Public Service Commission.

Officers of the status of Additional Secretary to the Government.
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21.

Registrar of Supreme Court.

Vice-chairman, Export Promotion Bureau.

Additional Inspector-General of Police.

Chairman, Bangladesh Inland Water Transport Authority.
Chairman, Bangladesh Inland Water Transport Corporation.
Chairman, Bangladesh Small & Cottage Industries Corporation.
Chairman of the Civil Aviation Authority.

Chairman, Dhaka Improvement Trust.

Chairman, National Broadcasting Authority.

Chairman, Petroleum Corporation.

Chairman, Port Authority.

Chairman, Rural Electrification Board.

Chairman, Trading Corporation of Bangladesh.

Chairman, Water And Sewerage Authority.

Chairman, Bangladesh Hand Loom Board.

Chairman, Bangladesh Sericulture Board.

Chairman, Bangladesh Jute corporation.

Chairman,  Bangladesh  Forest Industries  Development
Corporation.

Chairman, Bangladesh Fisheries Development Corporation.
Chairman, Bangladesh Tourism Corporation.

Chairman, Bangladesh Road Transport Corporation.

Chief Controller of Imports and Exports.

Chief Engineer, Housing and Settlement Department.

Chief Engineer of Public Health Engineering Department.
Commissioners of Divisions within their respective charges.
Director, Bangladesh Chemical Industries Corporation (if full-
time member of the Board of Directors).

Director, Bangladesh Jute Mills Corporation (if full-time member
of the Board of Directors).

Director, Bangladesh Steel & Engineering Corporation (if full-
time member of the Board of Directors).

Director, Bangladesh Sugar and food Industries Corporation (if
full-time member of the Board of Directors).

Director, Bangladesh Textile Mills Corporation (if full-time
member of the Board of Directors).

Director General of Ansars & VDP.

Director General of Bangladesh Rural Development Board.

Director General Department of Immigration and Passport.

REY 3- FICA IS ARFH (F5 G P Tq1 G e Fifet (PG o A=A fox 799 face =611

B1-25/5b-55(F) fSIfd 2@-53-dbr

FSICTD A5 (2T- FPEACHR *1A1-R-bbr /20 Sbr-2055/(7F5)-29-53-205b-3,00,000 FA|



71

TG 8 St

22.

Director General of Export Promotion Bureau.

Director General Fire Services and Civil Defence.

Director General of Food.

Director General of Geological Survey.

Director General of Industries.

Director General of Land Record and Surveys.

Director General of Post Offices.

Director General of Population Control.

Director General of Relief and Rehabilitation.

Director General Shipping.

General Managing of Bangladesh Railway.

Joint Secretaries to the Government.

Managing Director, Bangladesh Shipping Corporation.
Managing Director of the Financial Institutions.

Managing Director, Jiban Bima Corporation.

Managing Director, Sadharan Bima Corporation.

[Managing  Director,  Bangladesh  Film  Development
Corporation]

Member, Atomic Energy Commission (if full-time member of the
Board of Directors).

Member, Bangladesh Agricultural Development Corporation (if
full-time member of the Board of Directors).

Member, Bangladesh Oil, Gas and Mineral Corporation (if full-
time member of the Board of Directors).

Member, Bangladesh Power Development Board (if full-time
member of the Board of Directors).

Member, Bangladesh Water Development Board (if full-time
member of the Board of Directors).

Ministers and Deputy High Commissioners (of the rank of
Ministers in Embassies, High Commissions and Missions located
in Bangladesh).

Officers of the rank of Brigadier in the Army and equivalent in the
Navy and the Air Force

Registrar, Co-operative Societies.

Surveyor-General of Bangladesh.

Additional Chief Architect.

Additional Chief Engineers of Government Departments.
Additional Director-General, Health Services.

[Chairman, Chittagong Development Authority
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23.

Chairman, Rajshahi Development Authority.

Chairman, Khulna Development Authority.]

Collectors of Customs and Excise

Commissioners of Divisions outside their respective charges.
Commissioners of Taxes.

Consuls General.

Controller General of Accounts

Controller General of Defence Finance.

Counsellors of Embassies, High Commissions and Legations of
Foreign and Commonwealth Government.

Deputy Inspectors General of Police within their respective
charges.

Director of Agriculture Extension.

Director of General, Bangladesh Agricultural Research Institute.
Director General, Bangladesh Jute Research Institute.

Director General, Bangladesh Rice Research Institute.

Director General, Department of Social Services.

Director General, National Institute of Mass Communication.
Director General of Youth Development Department.

Director, Military lands and Cantonment.

[Director General, Bangladesh Industrial Technical Assistance
Centre.

Director General, Bangladesh Standard and Testing Institute.]
Inspector General of Prisons.

Joint Chief, Planning Commission.

Member, Bangladesh Council of Scientific and Industrial
Research (if full-time member of the Board of Directors).
[Member, Bangladesh export Processing Zone Authority (if full-
time member of the Board of Directors)].

Member, Tea Board (if full-time member of the Board of
Directors).

Officers of the rank of Full Colonel in the Army and equivalent in
the Navy and the Air Force.

Officers of the status of Joint Secretary to the Government.
Principals of Medical and Engineering Colleges and Professors
of Universities.

Additional Commissioners (within their respective charges).
[Director, Bangladesh Jute Corporation (if full-time member of
the Board of Directors).
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24.

Director, Bangladesh Forest industries Corporation (if full-time
member of the Board of Directors).

Director, Bangladesh Fisheries Development Corporation (if full-
time member of the Board of Directors).Director, Bangladesh
Tourism Corporation (if full-time member of the Board of
Directors).

Director, Bangladesh Film Development Corporation (if full-time
member of the Board of Directors).

Director, Bangladesh Road Transport Corporation (if full-time
member of the Board of Directors).

Director of Education.

Director, Petroleum Corporation (if full-time member of the
Board of Directors).

Director, Bangladesh Rural Development Board (if full-time
member of the Board of Directors).

Director, Trading Corporation of Bangladesh (if full-time member
of the Board of Directors).

Mayors of Civic Corporations outside their respective charges.
Member, Bangladesh Inland Water Transport Authority (if full-
time member of the Board of Directors).

Member, Bangladesh Inland Water Transport Corporation (if full-
time member of the Board of Directors).

[Member, Bangladesh Handloom Board (if full-time member of
the Board of Directors).

Member, Bangladesh Sericulture Board (if full-time member of
the Board of Directors)].

Member, Civil Aviation Authority (if full-time member of the
Board of Directors).

Member, Port Authority (if full-time member of the Board of
Directors).

Member, Rural Electrification Board (if full-time member of the
Board of Directors).

Member, Bangladesh Shipping Corporation (if full-time member
of the Board of Directors).

Military, Naval and Air Attaches to Embassies and Legations and
Military, Naval and Air Advisors to High Commissions.

Professors of Medical and Engineering Colleges.

Chairmen of District Councils (if elected) within their respective

charges.
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Commandant, Marine Academy.
Deputy Commissioners within their respective charges.
Deputy Inspectors General of Police outside their charges.
[Director, Bangladesh Industrial Technical Assistance Centre (if
full-time member of the Board of Directors).
Director, Bangladesh Standard and Testing Institute (if full-time
member of the Board of Directors)].
District and Sessions Judges within their respective charges.
Officers of the rank if Lieutenant Colonel in the Army and
equivalent in the Navy and the Air Force.

25. Chairman (if elected) of class 1 Municipalities within their
charges.
Chairmen of Upazila Parishads within their respective charges.
Civil Surgeons within their respective charges.
Deputy Secretaries to the Government.
Officers of the rank of Major in the Army and equivalent in the
Navy and the Air Force.

Superintendents of Police within their respective charges.
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